
 

 

A Self-Guided Tour 
winding through 
Alpenaõs magnificent 

buildings and memories 
of years past. 

Historic  
Downtown Alpena  

Scavenger Hunt  

Courtesy of:  

Besser Museum for Northeast Michigan  

The George N. Fletcher Alpena County Library 
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Discover Alpena! 
The Historic Downtown Alpena Scavenger Hunt is broken down 
into four districts.  The maps below show each route and list the 
participating businesses in each district.  Businesses will have a 
kiosk on display, so in order to find the answer to the scavenger 

hunt question, you will need to visit each business and read their 
information kiosk.   

Directions 

As you tour the city, you will need to read each clue, determine 
which business the clue is referring to, then visit the business.  

Inside the business you will find the information kiosk.  Read this 
information and use it to answer the ultimate history question 

for each business.   

 Keep your eyes open, and remember that the best explorers are 
patient, observant, and excited about what they find.   

Good luck and have fun! 

 

Third Avenue  

Alõs Pools & Spas 

Lasting Expressions 

South Second Avenue  

The Black Sheep 

Royal Knight Cinema 

West Chisholm  

Habitat for Humanity 

Real Estate One 

David Beatty, DDS 

Take 5 Deli 

Myerõs Fashions 

Bolenz Jewelry 

The Marketplace 

North Second Avenue  

Scoops 

Steve Werth 

The Center Building 

Business District 1 

Music and More 

Stephenõs Menswear 

Yarns to Go 

 



 

 

Business District 2 

North Second Avenue  

Cabin Creek Coffee 

John Henryõs Antique Mall 

State Movie Theater 

Soaps & Such 

PNC Bank 

The Country Cousins Shop 

Masters Shoes 

Blue Phoenix Books 

As You Wish/Shortcakeõs 

Travelling Ladders 

Olivet Bookstore 

East Chisholm Street  

Gillard Law 

Sherwin Williams 

Centennial Building 

 

  Business District 3 

òOld Townó Alpena 

North Second Avenue  

Alpena Furniture 

Thunder Bay Theatre 

Thunder Bay  

     Marine Sanctuary 

BRIDGE 

Great Lakes Divers 

JJõs Steak & Pizza House 

John A. Lau Saloon 

2nd Ave. at Huber Street  

Nowickiõs Sausage Shoppe 
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 Business District 1: The Black Sheep  
Block:  Holmes     Built:  1894 

     This building was built by Frank C. Holmes 
in 1894 after a vicious fire destroyed the earlier 
Alpine Block.  Originally, this block was home to 
a thriving grocery business owned by Holmes 
himself.  Architecturally, the Holmes Block is 
one of three Romanesque structures remaining 
in downtown Alpena.   

     This building is known for housing a variety 
of businesses, including The Alpena Printing 
Studio from 1928 to 1976 when they moved to the location where 
The Marketplace now stands. 

Which major US tragedy struck just a few months after 
The Alpena Printing Studio moved into the Holmes 

building?  

The Great Depression 

Business District 1: Royal Knight Cinema  
Block:  Previous Holmes & Reynoldôs 

Built:  1929  

     The building now occupied by one of 
Alpenaôs favorite family destinations 
may be engrained in most citizenôs 
memories as J.C. Penneyôs most 
memorable location.   

     The original building that stood on 
this location was the Holmes and 
Reynolds block, which burned in 1927.  In 1929, the current 
building was constructed to house J.C. Penney and received 
extensive renovations after a 1935 fire, and again received façade 
renovations in 1972, which is how it remains today. 
 

What other business, owned by one of Alpenaôs most 
prominent settlers, once had a thriving business here in 

the 1800s? Hanover Harness Shop  



 

 Business District 1: Take 5 Deli  
Built:  mid -Twentieth Century  

     Many will remember this business as 
Reinke Real Estate.  Harold Reinke 
specialized in hunting land and resort 
property and was the cofounder of the 
Alpena Wildfowl Sanctuary.  For many 
years, Reinke sponsored a ñbuck poleò 
next to his office. 

     Unlike many other locations in the City 
of Alpena, this area of Chisholm Street featured plain wooden and 
brick structures and hosted hundreds of different businesses over 
the past 150 years. 

Although this corner of the block was mainly commercial, 
what type of dwellings could you find just across the 

street?  

Residential Dwellings 

Sõ~typ~~ęUt~ }tn ę«µę^¤p}Ö~ęWl~stzy~ęęęęę 
Built:  mid -Twentieth Century  

     This building was once home to one of Alpenaôs most interesting 
businesses, Stanôs Butcher Shop and Alpena Sharp Freeze.   

     Before home freezers were popular, you could rent a freezer 
locker to store your meats and other items that required freezing.  
The lockers were large drawers in a walk-in room, each having its 
own key.   

     The current business on this location has been serving  
Alpena since 1931. 

 

What church was once 
located in the parking lot 

beside this building?  

Methodist Episcopal  
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Business District 1: Dr. Beatty  
Block:  Previous Beck   Built:  1891 

     The Beck Block was a large two-story 
brick building built by the same family 
who owned and operated the Beck 
Brewery at the corner of East Chisholm 
Street and 1st Avenue.  Wehoferôs Bakery, 
an Alpena favorite, opened here in 1946 in 
a brand new building.   

 

 

Later in the Twentieth Century, 
what business operated here 
before the current business 

took residence?  

Dominoes Pizza 

 

Business District 1: Habitat   

Block:  Pamerleau  Built:  1890  

     Before the Pamerleau 
Block was constructed 
this location housed one 
of Alpenaôs very first 
schools!  Once the 
Pamerleau Block was 
constructed, the large, 
two-story brick buildingôs 

lower level was a feed store with living quarters on the upper level.  
George Pamerleau came to Alpena at the age of 19 in 1867.  Alpena 
was just a young town, but Pamerleau saw that Alpena would be 
something great someday.  He invested his time, money, and efforts 
into helping Alpena grow.      

     The building he built over 125 years ago still stands 
today as this business, but has also housed a car garage 

and most famously, Mulvena Truck Lines  

Wehoferôs Bakery 

Beck Block 



 

 Business District 1: Bolenz Jewelry  
 Built:  mid -Twentieth Century  

     This block of buildings was built  
mid -Twentieth Century and has housed 
many businesses and faced many 
tragedies, including gas explosions and 
fires.  This building was once part of A&P 
Supermarket, which was known as the 
first store in Alpena to be ñself-service.ò  
Before this store opened, the people of 

Alpena shopped in small neighborhood stores.   

     The current business was a lifelong dream of Walter Bolenz, who 
came to Alpena from Germany.  The business operated from many 
different locations, under a different name, including where 
Culligan Plaza is now and where JJôs Steak and Pizza is now.   

What was the original name of this business?  

Northside Jewelry  

Business District 1: Real Estate One  
Built:  mid -Twentieth Century  

     This block of West Chisholm 
Street was residential up through 
the early 1900s.  In 1892, The Beck 
Block was built on the corner of 
3rd Avenue and Chisholm Street.  
Bordering the residence that 
occupied this address was 
VanNocker Photography Studio 
(photo right, ca 1913).  Chisholm 
Street was much different from 
historic 2nd Avenue.  Most of the buildings on this side of town 
were wooden structures and burned down or were torn down as 
they slowly decayed.   

Who is the gentleman sitting in the horse drawn wagon 
pictured above?  

Mr. Frank Herron  

Interior of A & P Supermarket  
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 Business District 1: The Marketplace  
Ca. 1960-1970 

     This business now stands where one of 
Alpenaôs most important buildings once 
stood.  Alpenaôs original Armory was 
located in the middle of this block, but 
burned down one week before Christmas 
in 1919.   Several businesses have 
occupied this location over the years, 
including Alpena Printing Studio.  The 
Alpena Printing Studio was originally 

located on South Second Avenue in the Holmes block, but moved to 
this location as the business expanded in 1976.   

Alpena has faced many great tragedies, including 
numerous fires.  What business near this location was 

destroyed first by a gas blast, was rebuilt and then 
destroyed by a fire ? The Owl Café  

Business District 1: Downtown Scoops  
Block: C.C. Whitney, then 

Bertrand  
Built:  ca. 1875 

     This building was originally 
built to house a drugstore that 
C.C. Whitney purchased from 
pioneer druggist William P. 
Maiden.  In fact, this building 
has housed a drugstore business 
for the majority of its history.   

     On June 21, 1892, a tornado 
struck the city of Alpena.  The tornado ran right through downtown 
2nd Avenue, causing damage to many of the buildings, including the 
Whitney Block which had itôs flagstaff thrown into the street.   
 

     At one time, Alpena Business Institute,  a business college, 
operated out of the  

2nd floor of this building.  



 

 Sõ~typ~~ęUt~ }tn ę«µęRwÖ~ęazzw~ęlyoęd{l~ 
Founded:  1883 

     This business began in 1883 
making and selling window 
sashes and doors.  Machinery 
from the mill is on display at the 
Besser Museum and can also be 
seen inside the current business.  
Much of the storerooms and 
warehouse of the current 
business have remained the 

same as they looked over 100 years ago. 
 

What business took residence in this building for  
nearly a century?  

Gebhardt Morrow  

Business District 1: Lasting Expressions  
Building:  Crow     Built:  1907  

     In May of 1886, Alpena Marble and 
Granite Co. was established by Amos 
Benjamin Crow and was originally 
located at the foot of Chisholm Street 
in downtown Alpena.  

     This business specialized in creating 
quality cemetery markers and 
monuments.  Amos Crow was only 18 
years old at the time.  A.B. Crow, Sr. 

was a building contractor who specialized in stonework.  As the 
monument business grew, their need for expansion became evident 
and thus was erected the Crow Building.  Crow Memorial remained 
at this location until 1972.  

This magnificent building was one of the first to boast 
these three things:  

1) Steel-reinforced concrete 2) Travelling crane  
3) Elevator 
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Business District 1: Steve Werth Bldg.  
Block:  Andrew Harshaw    

Built:  1877 

     Andrew Harshaw was a native of 
Ireland and moved to Alpena in the 

late 1800s.  Being a respected 
pioneer businessman, he served as 

mayor for three, two -year terms 
between 1884 and 1894.   In 

addition, he built this block which 
originally included both 105 and 107 

N. Second Avenue.   

In 1925, Tony and Norm, 
owned by Norm Martinson and 

Anthony Nowak, moved into 
the building and became well 
known in the area for having 

high quality ñname brandò clothing. 

 

     July 19, 1909 was most 
likely one of the most 
heated and pointed City 
Council Meetings in the 
history of Alpena.  Before 
the Council sat Richard 
Collins encouraging the 
Council to approve paving 
the streets with brick, and 
John Monaghan fighting for 

the streets to be paved with cement.  Up until this point, the streets 
were either finished with cedar logs or were left as dirt or gravel. 

     As the night concluded, it was voted that the contract be 
approved to pave the streets with cement.  This would cost just 
$1.55 per square yard to pave from Chisholm Street from First 
Street to Fifth Street.  And thus is so, Alpenaôs first paved road 
became a reality in October 1909. 

Alpenaôs First Paving Team 

Chisholm Street Finally Paved!  


